

**BEFORE
THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO**

In the Matter of the Application of The)	
East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a Dominion)	17-2514-GA-ATA
Energy Ohio for Authority to Revise its)	
Tariffs.)	

In the Matter of the Application of The)	
East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a Dominion)	17-2515-GA-IDR
Energy Ohio for Approval to Establish an)	
Infrastructure Development Rider.)	

*** * * EXPEDITED TREATMENT REQUESTED * * ***

1. APPLICANT RESPECTFULLY PROPOSES:

<u> X </u> New Service	_____ Change in Rule or Regulation
_____ New Classification	_____ Reduction in Rates
_____ Change in Classification	_____ Correction of Error
<u> X </u> Other, Not Involving Increase in Rates	
_____ Various Related and Unrelated Textual Revisions Without Change in Intent	

2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

In accordance with R.C. 4929.161 and Ohio Admin. Code 4901:1-43-04, The East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a Dominion Energy Ohio (DEO) seeks approval to adopt a new Infrastructure Development Rider (IDR) as part of its tariff. The IDR is authorized by statute and is designed to recover infrastructure development costs, as defined by R.C. 4929.16, associated with economic development projects that may later be approved under R.C. 4929.163. DEO also proposes a new provision in its rules and regulations to address mainline extensions funded by the IDR.

DEO also proposes several non-substantive revisions in conjunction with the IDR. DEO is revising various rate schedules to reflect the applicability of the IDR, updating an internal cross-reference and citations to the Ohio Administrative Code, and eliminating tariff-code prefixes from certain headers for consistency. DEO also provides several updates to the tariff table of contents.

3. **TARIFFS AFFECTED:**

New tariff:

- Infrastructure Development Rider (IDR)

Existing tariffs:

- General Sales Service – Residential (GSS-R)
- General Sales Service – Nonresidential (GSS-NR)
- Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)
- Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential (ECTS-R)
- Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)
- Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)
- General Transportation Service (GTS)
- Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)
- Daily Transportation Service (DTS)
- Rules and Regulations, Sheet Nos. K8–K10

4. Attached hereto and made a part hereof are:

 X **Exhibit A** – Existing schedule sheets (to be superseded) if applicable.

 X **Exhibit B** – Proposed schedule sheets.

 X **Exhibit B-1** – Redlined tariff sheets showing changes to existing tariffs.

 X **Exhibit C-1**

- a. If new service is proposed, describe;
- b. If new equipment is involved, describe (preferably with a picture, brochure, etc.) and, where appropriate, provide a statement distinguishing proposed service from existing services;
- c. If proposed service results from customers request, so state giving, if available, the number of customers requesting proposed service.

 X **Exhibit C-2** – If a change of classification, rule or regulation is proposed, a statement explaining reason for change.

 Exhibit C-3 – Statement explaining reason for any proposal not covered in exhibits C-1 or C-2.

5. This application will not result in an increase in any rate, joint rate, toll, classification, charge or rental.

Dated: December 20, 2017

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Andrew J. Campbell

Mark A. Whitt (0067996)

Andrew J. Campbell (0081485)

Rebekah J. Glover (0088798)

WHITT STURTEVANT LLP

The KeyBank Building, Suite 1590

88 East Broad Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215

Telephone: (614) 224-3946

Facsimile: (614) 224-3960

whitt@whitt-sturtevant.com

campbell@whitt-sturtevant.com

glover@whitt-sturtevant.com

(Counsel willing to accept service by email)

ATTORNEYS FOR THE EAST OHIO GAS
COMPANY D/B/A DOMINION ENERGY OHIO

EXHIBIT A
Existing Tariff Sheets to be Superseded

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Title</u>	<u>Page</u>
List of Communities Served	Sheet Nos. 1 – 4
Rate Schedules	
General Sales Service – Residential	GSS-R 1 – 2
General Sales Service – Non-Residential	GSS-NR 1 – 2
Large Volume General Sales Service	F-LVGSS 1 – 2
Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential	ECTS-R 1 – 3
Energy Choice Transportation Service – Non-Residential	ECTS-NR 1 – 3
Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service	F-LVECTS 1 - 3
General Transportation Service	F-GTS 1 – 3
Transportation Service for Schools	F-TSS 1 – 3
Daily Transportation Service	F-DTS 1 – 3
Firm Storage Service	F-FSS 1 – 4
Standby Service	SS 1 – 2
Riders and Charges	
Standard Service Offer	B-SSO 1
Percentage Income Payment Plan	F-PIP 1
Uncollectible Expense Rider	F-UER 1
Gross Receipts Tax and Excise Tax Riders	F-GRTR 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part A	Sheet No. 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part B	Sheet No. 2
Transportation Surcredit Rider	SCR 1
AMR Cost Recovery Charge	AMR 1
Pipeline Infrastructure Replacement Cost Recovery Charge	PIR 1
Demand Side Management Rider	DSM 1
Rules and Regulations	K1 – 9
General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service	F-GT&C 1 - 15
General Terms and Conditions of Energy Choice Pooling Service	F-ECPS 1 - 66

General Sales Service - Residential (GSS-R)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following classes of Customers are able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Customers participating in the Percentage Income Payment Plan and
- 2) Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential ("ECTS-R") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-R rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-R or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-R tariff, or under the MVR rate schedule in conjunction with the Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

- 3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall include a charge for the cost of gas based on the Standard Service Offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider, in addition to the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule.
- 3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider, as applicable.

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

General Sales Service - Nonresidential (GSS-NR)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following class of Customers is able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Nonresidential Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-NR rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-NR or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-NR or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.
- 2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider as applicable.

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule, are not eligible to receive service under the Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule and have entered into a written contract with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- | | | | | | |
|-----|---------------|-----|-----------------|---------|----------|
| (1) | For the first | 100 | Mcf each month, | \$1.250 | per Mcf, |
| | For the next | 400 | Mcf each month, | \$0.970 | per Mcf, |
| | For all over | 500 | Mcf each month, | \$0.820 | per Mcf. |

- (2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

3.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion.

3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider as applicable.

4. Termination of Contract

After receiving service under this rate schedule for at least twelve months, the Customer may terminate purchases under the contract and under this rate schedule upon thirty days written notice to East Ohio, which notice shall specify the termination date.

5. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential or General Sales Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

6. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

7. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential (ECTS-R)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Residential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable

Rate Commodity Service (“MVR”) rate in accordance with the applicability of those rate schedules.

- 4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio’s Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer’s Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-29-12 except for 4901:1-29-12(F), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer’s failure to make payment or at the Customer’s request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer’s account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio’s sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company’s tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Nonresidential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.

- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.
- 4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer's Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-29-12 except for 4901:1-29-12(F), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer's account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio's sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company's tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have entered into a written contract for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months if so required by East Ohio; and
- c) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rate set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 100 Mcf each month, \$1.250 per Mcf,
For the next 400 Mcf each month, \$0.970 per Mcf,
For all over 500 Mcf each month, \$0.820 per Mcf.

- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.

4.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge and Transportation Surcredit Rider as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer's Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-29-12, except for 4901:1-29-12(F), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential, or Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under East Ohio's Large Volume General Sales Service or this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to

payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer's account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio's sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Nonpayment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, nonpayment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company's tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

General Transportation Service (GTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3. 2 below
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion in order to monitor system operations and maintain system integrity, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly

installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120 volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	100	Mcf each month,	\$1.250	per Mcf,
For the next	400	Mcf each month,	\$0.990	per Mcf,
For the next	1,500	Mcf each month,	\$0.875	per Mcf,
For all over	2,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.711	per Mcf.

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$120.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge and PIR Cost Recovery Charge. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)

1. Applicability

1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is for service to the non-residential premises of primary and secondary schools throughout East Ohio's service area that:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
- b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
- c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.

1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3.2 below.
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East

Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15-ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Balancing Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	100	Mcf each month,	\$1.500	per Mcf,
For the next	400	Mcf each month,	\$1.150	per Mcf,
For all over	500	Mcf each month,	\$0.800	per Mcf,

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$40.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge and PIR Cost Recovery Charge. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Daily Transportation Service (DTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any day for the account of the customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 All Delivery Points specified in the contract shall be equipped with real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be born by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months.
- 3.2 The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.

- 3.3 The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.
- 3.4 Failure by the Customer to arrange for the installation of EGM equipment or the electric and telephone service required may result in East Ohio billing usage charges based on the General Transportation Service rate schedule.

4. Balancing Tolerances

- 4.1 The Customer's Daily Available Volume on any Day shall equal the Delivery Volume on that Day, plus or minus 5%. Daily imbalances in excess of the 5% tolerance shall be subject to an imbalance fee of \$0.20 per Mcf per Day.
- 4.2 Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Optional Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule may elect to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. A Customer electing such service shall enter into a written service agreement for Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customer is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers that subscribe to Volume Banking Service will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	5,000	Mcf each month,	\$1.0803	per Mcf,
for the next	45,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.6500	per Mcf,
for all over	50,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.1663	per Mcf.

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$377.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A and PIR Cost Recovery Charge. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994, shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

28. **Appliances.** The customer shall install and maintain all appliances, at the customer's expense.
29. **Inspections of Altered Piping.** It shall be the duty of the customer to notify the Company promptly of any additions, changes, alterations, remodeling or reconstruction affecting gas piping on the customer's premises.
30. **Extension of Distribution Mains.** East Ohio will extend its distribution mains for the furnishing of natural gas on any dedicated street or highway without cost to the residential customer whenever at least one such customer on an average of each 100 additional feet of pipe in the street or highway in which the extension is to be run shall first agree to take a supply of gas at the applicable rate, measurement to be taken from the end of the nearest distribution main that has the capacity to serve the customer(s). Upon application for a service extension of main in excess of an average of 100 feet for each applicant for such service, East Ohio may enter into an extension agreement with the applicant or applicants providing for a deposit with East Ohio of a sum deemed adequate by East Ohio to cover the cost to be incurred by it for the excess of the extension over the average of 100 feet for each applicant to be served. Each applicant shall have the option of making such payment in the form of a one-time deposit or a monthly payment to be billed to the applicant and/or subsequent customer(s) at the same premises for a period of seven years or until the cost of the mainline extension is included in East Ohio's rates and charges for service, whichever comes first. If the applicant chooses to make the payment in the form of a one-time deposit, such deposit shall be refunded within a period of 10 years from the date of the agreement at a rate per each additional residential customer thereafter connected with said extension, equivalent to the rate per 100 feet deposited, the total amount refunded not to exceed the amount deposited. No refund shall be made after 10 years from the date of the extension agreement and such deposit shall, after such period, become the property of East Ohio. Extension deposits shall bear no interest. East Ohio shall apply the preceding terms for extension of distribution mains to home builders and residential developers on the basis of anticipated residential customers, and, as a result, the deposit installment payment and refund provisions are not applicable in such instances. Extensions of street and highway mains shall at all times be the property of East Ohio. Mainline extensions that are not installed in road right of way, or adjacent thereto, will be made only if the following guidelines are met:
- a) A minimum 20 foot legally described easement or blanket right of way is made and granted, provided, however, that all gas mainlines with a maximum allowable operating pressure at or above 100 psi must have a minimum 30 foot easement.
 - b) Free and clear access to the gas mainline is maintained with no structures permitted on the easement.

East Ohio shall not be required to lay any service lines across paved streets or highways. East Ohio shall not be required to make any extensions of its mains or to lay any service lines during the months of December, January, February and March of any year.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prohibit East Ohio from making longer free extensions than herein prescribed provided like free extensions are made to other applicants under similar conditions.

31. **Right of Removal.** No person or entity shall erect any structure within a Company easement or change the existing grade over a Company gas line without the express permission of East Ohio. East Ohio shall have the right to remove any such structure or grade change at the expense of the customer or responsible party.
32. **Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect in Customer's Property.** If, at any time, in the opinion of East Ohio the property owner's service line, other gas lines, fittings, connections, gas appliances or equipment on a customer's premises are defective or in such condition as to constitute a hazard, East Ohio, upon notice to it of such defect or condition, may discontinue the supply of gas to such appliances or equipment or to such service line or such other gas lines until such defect or condition has been rectified by the property owner or customer in a manner satisfactory to East Ohio.
33. **Excess Flow Valves.** A customer may request the installation of an excess flow valve ("EFV") on an existing service line that qualifies for installation under federal pipeline safety regulations. Customers requesting installation of an EFV shall be responsible for the actual costs associated with installation, which shall be billable to the customer. East Ohio reserves the right not to install an EFV under conditions specified under federal pipeline safety regulations.

SECTION IV – MISCELLANEOUS

34. **Tariff Disclosure.** A full and complete copy of East Ohio's current tariff covering rates and charges for service and terms and conditions of service will be available on www.dom.com or will be provided upon request within five business days. East Ohio shall comply with the tariff disclosure requirements established by The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and set forth in Section 4901:1-1-03 of the Ohio Administrative Code, as amended from time to time.
35. **PUCO Orders.** These Rules and Regulations are subject to and include as part thereof all orders, rules and regulations applicable to East Ohio from time to time issued or established by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio under its emergency powers.
36. **Right to Modify.** East Ohio reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rules and regulations as experience may suggest and as East Ohio may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business.

EXHIBIT B
Proposed Tariff Sheets

New Tariff

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT RIDER (IDR)**1. Applicability**

Applicable to all customers receiving service under East Ohio's sales and transportation rate schedules listed below.

General Sales Service – Residential (GSS-R)
General Sales Service – Nonresidential (GSS-NR)
Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)
Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential (ECTS-R)
Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)
Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)
General Transportation Service (GTS)
Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)
Daily Transportation Service (DTS)

2. Description

All customers receiving service under the above rate schedules shall be assessed a monthly charge, regardless of gas consumed, in addition to the otherwise applicable service charge to recover infrastructure development costs associated with Commission-approved economic development projects.

3. IDR Charge

A monthly charge of \$0.00 per account, per month shall be applied to all customers.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-xxx-GA-ATA

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Existing Tariffs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Title</u>	<u>Page</u>
List of Communities Served	Sheet Nos. 1 – 5
Rate Schedules	
General Sales Service – Residential	GSS-R 1 – 2
General Sales Service – Non-Residential	GSS-NR 1 – 2
Large Volume General Sales Service	LVGSS 1 – 2
Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential	ECTS-R 1 – 3
Energy Choice Transportation Service – Non-Residential	ECTS-NR 1 – 3
Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service	LVECTS 1 - 3
General Transportation Service	GTS 1 – 3
Transportation Service for Schools	TSS 1 – 3
Daily Transportation Service	DTS 1 – 3
Firm Storage Service	F-FSS 1 – 4
Standby Service	SS 1 – 2
Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service	B-SCO 1 – 2
Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service	B-MVR 1 – 2
Riders and Charges	
Standard Service Offer Gas Cost Rate	B-SSO 1
Standard Choice Offer Gas Rate	B-SCO 3
Percentage Income Payment Plan	F-PIP 1
Uncollectible Expense Rider	F-UER 1
Gross Receipts Tax and Excise Tax Riders	F-GRTR 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part A	Sheet No. 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part B	Sheet No. 2
Transportation Surcredit Rider	SCR 1
AMR Cost Recovery Charge	AMR 1
Pipeline Infrastructure Replacement (PIR) Cost Recovery Charge	PIR 1
Demand Side Management Rider	DSM 1
Infrastructure Development Rider	IDR 1
Rules and Regulations	K1 – 10
General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service	F-GT&C 1 - 15
General Terms and Conditions of Energy Choice Pooling Service	F-ECPS 1 - 63

Issued:

Effective:

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

General Sales Service - Residential (GSS-R)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following classes of Customers are able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Customers participating in the Percentage Income Payment Plan and
- 2) Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential ("ECTS-R") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-R rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-R or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-R tariff, or under the MVR rate schedule in conjunction with the Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

- 3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall include a charge for the cost of gas based on the Standard Service Offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider, in addition to the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule.
- 3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

General Sales Service - Nonresidential (GSS-NR)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following class of Customers is able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Nonresidential Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-NR rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-NR or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-NR or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.
- 2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule, are not eligible to receive service under the Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule and have entered into a written contract with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- | | | | | | |
|-----|---------------|-----|-----------------|---------|----------|
| (1) | For the first | 100 | Mcf each month, | \$1.250 | per Mcf, |
| | For the next | 400 | Mcf each month, | \$0.970 | per Mcf, |
| | For all over | 500 | Mcf each month, | \$0.820 | per Mcf. |

- (2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

3.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion.

3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

4. Termination of Contract

After receiving service under this rate schedule for at least twelve months, the Customer may terminate purchases under the contract and under this rate schedule upon thirty days written notice to East Ohio, which notice shall specify the termination date.

5. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential or General Sales Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

6. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

7. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential (ECTS-R)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Residential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-___-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Rate Commodity Service (“MVR”) rate in accordance with the applicability of those rate schedules.

- 4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio’s Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer’s Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-13-11 except for 4901:1-13-11(G)(2), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer’s failure to make payment or at the Customer’s request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer’s account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio’s sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company’s tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Nonresidential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service (“MVR”) rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.

4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio’s Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Program, as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer’s Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-13-11 except for 4901:1-13-11(G)(2), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer’s failure to make payment or at the Customer’s request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer’s account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio’s sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company’s tariffs.

Issued:

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have entered into a written contract for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months if so required by East Ohio; and
- c) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rate set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- | | | | | |
|------------------|-----|-----------------|---------|----------|
| 1) For the first | 100 | Mcf each month, | \$1.250 | per Mcf, |
| For the next | 400 | Mcf each month, | \$0.970 | per Mcf, |
| For all over | 500 | Mcf each month, | \$0.820 | per Mcf. |

- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.

4.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer's Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-13-11 except for 4901:1-13-11(G)(2), for which a waiver was granted.

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential, or Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under East Ohio's Large Volume General Sales Service or this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to

payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer's account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio's sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Nonpayment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, nonpayment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company's tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

General Transportation Service (GTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3. 2 below
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion in order to monitor system operations and maintain system integrity, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-___-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120 volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	100	Mcf each month,	\$1.250	per Mcf,
For the next	400	Mcf each month,	\$0.990	per Mcf,
For the next	1,500	Mcf each month,	\$0.875	per Mcf,
For all over	2,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.711	per Mcf.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$120.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is for service to the non-residential premises of primary and secondary schools throughout East Ohio's service area that:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3.2 below.
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East

Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15-ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Balancing Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	100	Mcf each month,	\$1.500	per Mcf,
For the next	400	Mcf each month,	\$1.150	per Mcf,
For all over	500	Mcf each month,	\$0.800	per Mcf,

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$40.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Daily Transportation Service (DTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any day for the account of the customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 All Delivery Points specified in the contract shall be equipped with real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be born by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months.
- 3.2 The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

- 3.3 The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.
- 3.4 Failure by the Customer to arrange for the installation of EGM equipment or the electric and telephone service required may result in East Ohio billing usage charges based on the General Transportation Service rate schedule.

4. Balancing Tolerances

- 4.1 The Customer's Daily Available Volume on any Day shall equal the Delivery Volume on that Day, plus or minus 5%. Daily imbalances in excess of the 5% tolerance shall be subject to an imbalance fee of \$0.20 per Mcf per Day.
- 4.2 Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Optional Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule may elect to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. A Customer electing such service shall enter into a written service agreement for Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customer is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers that subscribe to Volume Banking Service will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	5,000	Mcf each month,	\$1.0803	per Mcf,
for the next	45,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.6500	per Mcf,
for all over	50,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.1663	per Mcf.

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$377.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994, shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-___-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

28. **Appliances.** The customer shall install and maintain all appliances, at the customer's expense.
29. **Inspections of Altered Piping.** It shall be the duty of the customer to notify the Company promptly of any additions, changes, alterations, remodeling or reconstruction affecting gas piping on the customer's premises.
30. **Extension of Distribution Mains: Residential Customers.** East Ohio will extend its distribution mains for the furnishing of natural gas on any dedicated street or highway without cost to the residential customer whenever at least one such customer on an average of each 100 additional feet of pipe in the street or highway in which the extension is to be run shall first agree to take a supply of gas at the applicable rate, measurement to be taken from the end of the nearest distribution main that has the capacity to serve the customer(s). Upon application for a service extension of main in excess of an average of 100 feet for each applicant for such service, East Ohio may enter into an extension agreement with the applicant or applicants providing for a deposit with East Ohio of a sum deemed adequate by East Ohio to cover the cost to be incurred by it for the excess of the extension over the average of 100 feet for each applicant to be served. Each applicant shall have the option of making such payment in the form of a one-time deposit or a monthly payment to be billed to the applicant and/or subsequent customer(s) at the same premises for a period of seven years or until the cost of the mainline extension is included in East Ohio's rates and charges for service, whichever comes first. If the applicant chooses to make the payment in the form of a one-time deposit, such deposit shall be refunded within a period of 10 years from the date of the agreement at a rate per each additional residential customer thereafter connected with said extension, equivalent to the rate per 100 feet deposited, the total amount refunded not to exceed the amount deposited. No refund shall be made after 10 years from the date of the extension agreement and such deposit shall, after such period, become the property of East Ohio. Extension deposits shall bear no interest. East Ohio shall apply the preceding terms for extension of distribution mains to home builders and residential developers on the basis of anticipated residential customers, and, as a result, the deposit installment payment and refund provisions are not applicable in such instances. Extensions of street and highway mains shall at all times be the property of East Ohio. Mainline extensions that are not installed in road right of way, or adjacent thereto, will be made only if the following guidelines are met:
- a) A minimum 20 foot legally described easement or blanket right of way is made and granted, provided, however, that all gas mainlines with a maximum allowable operating pressure at or above 100 psi must have a minimum 30 foot easement.
 - b) Free and clear access to the gas mainline is maintained with no structures permitted on the easement.

East Ohio shall not be required to lay any service lines across paved streets or highways. East Ohio shall not be required to make any extensions of its mains or to lay any service lines during the months of December, January, February and March of any year.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prohibit East Ohio from making longer free extensions than herein prescribed provided like free extensions are made to other applicants under similar conditions.

31. **Extension or Upgrade of Mainlines: Economic Development Projects.** In those instances where a main is being extended or upgraded in connection with an economic development project approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio under Section 4929.163 of the Ohio Revised Code, any deposit required may be funded, in whole or in part, by dollars recovered by East Ohio's Infrastructure Development Rider ("IDR"). Costs and revenues associated with IDR-related extensions or upgrades shall be treated as required by order of the Commission in Case No. 17-2515-GA-IDR and any subsequent cases.
32. **Right of Removal.** No person or entity shall erect any structure within a Company easement or change the existing grade over a Company gas line without the express permission of East Ohio. East Ohio shall have the right to remove any such structure or grade change at the expense of the customer or responsible party.
33. **Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect in Customer's Property.** If, at any time, in the opinion of East Ohio the property owner's service line, other gas lines, fittings, connections, gas appliances or equipment on a customer's premises are defective or in such condition as to constitute a hazard, East Ohio, upon notice to it of such defect or condition, may discontinue the supply of gas to such appliances or equipment or to such service line or such other gas lines until such defect or condition has been rectified by the property owner or customer in a manner satisfactory to East Ohio.
34. **Excess Flow Valves.** A customer may request the installation of an excess flow valve ("EFV") on an existing service line that qualifies for installation under federal pipeline safety regulations. Customers requesting installation of an EFV shall be responsible for the actual costs associated with installation, which shall be billable to the customer. East Ohio reserves the right not to install an EFV under conditions specified under federal pipeline safety regulations.

SECTION IV – MISCELLANEOUS

35. **Tariff Disclosure.** A full and complete copy of East Ohio's current tariff covering rates and charges for service and terms and conditions of service will be available on www.dom.com or will be provided upon request within five business days. East Ohio shall comply with the tariff disclosure requirements established by The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and set forth in Section 4901:1-1-03 of the Ohio Administrative Code, as amended from time to time.
36. **PUCO Orders.** These Rules and Regulations are subject to and include as part thereof all orders, rules and regulations applicable to East Ohio from time to time issued or established by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio under its emergency powers.

37. **Right to Modify.** East Ohio reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rules and regulations as experience may suggest and as East Ohio may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____-GA-ATA
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President and General Manager

EXHIBIT B-1
Redlined tariff sheets showing
changes to existing tariffs

New Tariff

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT RIDER (IDR)

1. Applicability

Applicable to all customers receiving service under East Ohio's sales and transportation rate schedules listed below.

General Sales Service – Residential (GSS-R)

General Sales Service – Nonresidential (GSS-NR)

Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)

Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential (ECTS-R)

Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)

Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)

General Transportation Service (GTS)

Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)

Daily Transportation Service (DTS)

2. Description

All customers receiving service under the above rate schedules shall be assessed a monthly charge, regardless of gas consumed, in addition to the otherwise applicable service charge to recover infrastructure development costs associated with Commission-approved economic development projects.

3. IDR Charge

A monthly charge of \$0.00 per account, per month shall be applied to all customers.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-xxx-GA-ATA

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Existing Tariffs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Title</u>	<u>Page</u>
List of Communities Served	Sheet Nos. 1 – 5
Rate Schedules	
General Sales Service – Residential	GSS-R 1 – 2
General Sales Service – Non-Residential	GSS-NR 1 – 2
Large Volume General Sales Service	LVGSS 1 – 2
Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential	ECTS-R 1 – 3
Energy Choice Transportation Service – Non-Residential	ECTS-NR 1 – 3
Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service	LVECTS 1 – 3
General Transportation Service	GTS 1 – 3
Transportation Service for Schools	TSS 1 – 3
Daily Transportation Service	DTS 1 – 3
Firm Storage Service	F-FSS 1 – 4
Standby Service	SS 1 – 2
Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service	B-SCO 1 – 2
Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service	B-MVR 1 – 2
Riders and Charges	
Standard Service Offer Gas Cost Rate	B-SSO 1
Standard Choice Offer Gas Rate	B-SCO 3
Percentage Income Payment Plan	F-PIP 1
Uncollectible Expense Rider	F-UER 1
Gross Receipts Tax and Excise Tax Riders	F-GRTR 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part A	Sheet No. 1
Transportation Migration Rider – Part B	Sheet No. 2
Transportation Surcredit Rider	SCR 1
AMR Cost Recovery Charge	AMR 1
Pipeline Infrastructure Replacement (PIR) Cost Recovery Charge	PIR 1
Demand Side Management Rider	DSM 1
Infrastructure Development Rider	IDR 1
Rules and Regulations	K1 – 10
General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service	F-GT&C 1 - 15
General Terms and Conditions of Energy Choice Pooling Service	F-ECPS 1 - 63
Issued: Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- GA-IDR	Effective: Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: 4

Deleted: F-

Deleted: F-

Deleted: F-

Deleted: F-

Deleted: F-

Deleted: 9

Deleted: 6

Deleted: March 30, 2011

Deleted: April 1, 2011

Deleted: 10-200-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

General Sales Service - Residential (GSS-R)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following classes of Customers are able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Customers participating in the Percentage Income Payment Plan and
- 2) Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential ("ECTS-R") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-R rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-R or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-R tariff, or under the MVR rate schedule in conjunction with the Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

- 3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall include a charge for the cost of gas based on the Standard Service Offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider, in addition to the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule.
- 3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____-GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and [Infrastructure Development Rider](#), as applicable.

Deleted: and

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Deleted: March 11, 2013
Deleted: April 1, 2013
Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM
Deleted: Anne E. Bomar
Deleted: Senior

Issued: [Jeffrey A. Murphy](#), Vice President
Effective: With bills rendered on or after [17- -GA-IDR](#)
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. [17- -GA-IDR](#)

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

General Sales Service - Nonresidential (GSS-NR)

1. Applicability

Service under this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule and use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio. The following class of Customers is able to receive service under this rate schedule:

- 1) Nonresidential Customers who are not eligible to receive service under the Energy Choice Transportation Service - Nonresidential ("ECTS-NR") rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the ECTS-NR rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the ECTS-NR or Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the ECTS-NR or LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

- 3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.
- 2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

- 3.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

- 3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider,

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Second
Deleted: First

Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

Deleted: and

4. Resumption of Service After Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

5. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplies under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

6. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Deleted: March 11, 2013
Deleted: April 1, 2013
Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM
Deleted: Anne E. Bomar
Deleted: Senior

Issued: Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

~~Deleted:~~ Eleventh~~Deleted:~~ F-~~Deleted:~~ Tenth~~Deleted:~~ F-**Large Volume General Sales Service (LVGSS)****1. Applicability**

Service under this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who purchase and receive all of their natural gas requirements directly from East Ohio pursuant to this rate schedule, are not eligible to receive service under the Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service ("LVECTS") rate schedule and have entered into a written contract with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.

Customers who are eligible to receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule are able to initially receive service under this rate schedule for up to two consecutive billing periods after which they must receive service under the LVECTS rate schedule. Such customers may receive commodity service under the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate schedule in conjunction with the LVECTS tariff.

2. Character of Service

All gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be supplied on a firm and continuous basis, provided, however, that in the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Rates and Charges

3.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each delivery point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 3.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- (1) For the first 100 Mcf each month, \$1.250 per Mcf,
For the next 400 Mcf each month, \$0.970 per Mcf,
For all over 500 Mcf each month, \$0.820 per Mcf.

- (2) A charge for the cost of gas based on the standard service offer rate as set forth on tariff sheet B-SSO 1 plus a charge equal to the Transportation Surcredit Rider.

3.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per delivery point for each billing period or any portion.

3.3 Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, [and Infrastructure Development Rider](#), as applicable.

~~Deleted:~~ and~~Deleted:~~~~Deleted:~~ March 11, 2013~~Deleted:~~ April 1, 2013~~Deleted:~~ 12-1842-GA-EXM~~Deleted:~~ Anne E. Bomar~~Deleted:~~ Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR _____

[Jeffrey A. Murphy](#), Vice President

Deleted: Eleventh

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Tenth

Deleted: F-

4. Termination of Contract

After receiving service under this rate schedule for at least twelve months, the Customer may terminate purchases under the contract and under this rate schedule upon thirty days written notice to East Ohio, which notice shall specify the termination date.

5. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential or General Sales Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

6. Prohibition on Resale of Gas

No gas supplied under this rate schedule shall be resold for any purpose.

7. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

Energy Choice Transportation Service - Residential (ECTS-R)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to residential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Residential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Standard Choice Offer Commodity Service ("SCO") or Monthly Variable

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

Rate Commodity Service (“MVR”) rate in accordance with the applicability of those rate schedules.

4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$17.58 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio’s Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

Deleted: and

Deleted:

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer’s Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-13-11, except for 4901:1-13-11(G)(2), for which a waiver was granted.

Deleted: 29-12

Deleted: 29-12(F)

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer’s failure to make payment or at the Customer’s request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer’s account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio’s sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company’s tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
 Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR _____
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential (ECTS-NR)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to nonresidential Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who use less than 3,000 Mcf per year as determined on an annual basis by East Ohio and:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service - Nonresidential or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

4. Rates and Charges

- 4.1 The volumetric charges for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rates set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 50 Mcf each month, \$0.378 per Mcf,
For all over 50 Mcf each month, \$1.198 per Mcf.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.
- 4.2 Each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$20.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, Demand Side Management Rider, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and [Infrastructure Development Program](#), as applicable.

Deleted: and

Deleted:

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer's Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-[13-11](#), except for 4901:1-[13-11\(G\)\(2\)](#), for which a waiver was granted.

Deleted: 29-12

Deleted: 29-12(F)

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to payment for all gas received by the Customer under this rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$33.00.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer's account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio's sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Non-payment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, non-payment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company's tariffs.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. [17- -GA-IDR](#)
[Jeffrey A. Murphy](#), Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Deleted: Eleventh

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Tenth

Deleted: F-

Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service (LVECTS)

1. Applicability

Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:

- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged to receive all of their natural gas requirements from a qualified Supplier that is receiving service under the terms of East Ohio's Energy Choice Pooling Service;
- b) have entered into a written contract for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve months if so required by East Ohio; and
- c) have no arrears of 30 days or more or are current on a payment plan to discharge such arrears for service rendered under this or any other of East Ohio's PUCO-approved rate schedules. Other Customers may begin receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule provided they have not broken a prior payment plan more than once during the preceding 12-month period. Such Customers shall be placed on a new payment plan upon enrollment and must remain current on that plan in order to continue receiving service pursuant to this rate schedule.

2. Character of Service

- 2.1 The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio on a firm basis. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.
- 2.2 In the event the Customer is no longer eligible to receive transportation service, the Customer must purchase and receive all of its natural gas requirements from East Ohio pursuant to East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, or Large Volume General Sales Service rate schedule.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

Delivery Points shall be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment or real-time electronic gas measurement capability.

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR _____
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

~~Deleted:~~ Thirteenth~~Deleted:~~ F-~~Deleted:~~ Twelfth~~Deleted:~~ F-

4. Rates and Charges

4.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall be the rate set forth below plus the riders, as specified in 4.3, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

- 1) For the first 100 Mcf each month, \$1.250 per Mcf,
 For the next 400 Mcf each month, \$0.970 per Mcf,
 For all over 500 Mcf each month, \$0.820 per Mcf.
- 2) The charge for commodity service as agreed between the Customer and its natural gas supplier or as determined under an applicable governmental aggregation program. Customers under this rate schedule may receive commodity service at the Monthly Variable Rate Commodity Service ("MVR") rate in accordance with the applicability of that rate schedule.

4.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$60.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.

4.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider, Uncollectible Expense Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part B, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, Transportation Surcredit Rider, and Infrastructure Development Rider, as applicable.

~~Deleted:~~ and

5. Billing

East Ohio shall bill for all services provided by East Ohio. Pursuant to a separate Billing Agreement, the Customer's Supplier shall have the option of East Ohio rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, or the Supplier may bill for commodity service independently. All Customer bills and payments will be handled in accordance with OAC rule 4901:1-~~13-11~~, except for 4901:1-~~13-11(G)(2)~~, for which a waiver was granted.

~~Deleted:~~ 29-12,~~Deleted:~~ 29-12(F)

6. Resumption of Service after Interruption

If service is interrupted as a result of the Customer's failure to make payment or at the Customer's request, and the Customer subsequently requests and receives service under East Ohio's General Sales Service – Residential, General Sales Service – Nonresidential, Energy Choice Transportation Service – Residential, or Energy Choice Transportation Service – Nonresidential, East Ohio shall not be under any obligation to resume service to the same Customer at the same premises under East Ohio's Large Volume General Sales Service or this rate schedule during the twelve consecutive months subsequent to the interruption or termination. East Ohio shall not be required to resume service under any rate schedule to the same Customer at the same premises unless East Ohio shall have received, in addition to

~~Deleted:~~ March 11, 2013~~Deleted:~~ April 1, 2013~~Deleted:~~ 12-1842-GA-EXM~~Deleted:~~ Anne E. Bomar~~Deleted:~~ Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
 Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. ~~17-~~ -GA-IDR
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

payment for all gas received by the Customer under this or any other rate schedule, a reconnection payment of \$60.

If service is disconnected while receiving service under this rate schedule and the Customer's account has been final billed, the Customer will revert to East Ohio's sales service upon reconnection and the agreement between the Customer and the Supplier will be terminated.

7. Disconnection For Nonpayment

Where East Ohio is rendering a combined bill for both distribution and commodity service, nonpayment of the bill, including the Supplier gas commodity portion, shall subject Customer to disconnection of service in accordance with rule 9 of Section K – Rules and Regulations of the Company's tariffs.

8. Regulations

All gas service provided by East Ohio is rendered under and subject to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

9. Definitions

Customer – any individual, governmental, or corporate entity taking transportation service hereunder.

Day – a 24-hour period beginning at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time or other such time as specified by East Ohio.

Delivery Point – the billing determinant for the application of Customer charges represented by the meter location at which gas is redelivered to the Customer.

Energy Choice Pooling Service – a gas pooling service in which Suppliers can aggregate demand and supplies for redelivery to Customers under East Ohio's Energy Choice Transportation Service and Large Volume Energy Choice Transportation Service rate schedules.

OAC – Ohio Administrative Code.

PUCO – the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Supplier – any entity which has in effect an Energy Choice Pooling Service agreement with East Ohio.

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Twelfth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Eleventh

Deleted: F-

Deleted: March 11, 2013

Deleted: April 1, 2013

Deleted: 12-1842-GA-EXM

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

General Transportation Service (GTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3. 2 below
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion in order to monitor system operations and maintain system integrity, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120 volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first	100	Mcf each month,	\$1.250	per Mcf,
For the next	400	Mcf each month,	\$0.990	per Mcf,
For the next	1,500	Mcf each month,	\$0.875	per Mcf,
For all over	2,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.711	per Mcf.

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$120.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: and

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

Transportation Service for Schools (TSS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is for service to the non-residential premises of primary and secondary schools throughout East Ohio's service area that:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months. East Ohio may waive the requirement that the Customer enter into a written contract to receive service under this rate schedule.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any Day for the account of the Customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 Delivery Points specified in the contract may be equipped with monthly gas measurement equipment instead of real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability, except as specified in Section 3.2 below.
- 3.2 Any Customer that does not receive all of its natural gas requirements through East Ohio may, at East Ohio's discretion, be required to equip all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. Any other Customer may elect to equip some or all of its Delivery Points with EGM capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be borne by the Customer and paid to East

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months. In addition:

- a) The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15-ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.
- b) The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.

4. Balancing Tolerances

Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule are required to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customers is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.4, applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

For the first 100 Mcf each month, \$1.500 per Mcf,
 For the next 400 Mcf each month, \$1.150 per Mcf,
 For all over 500 Mcf each month, \$0.800 per Mcf,

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
 Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR _____
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$40.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Any Customer that, after having received transportation service under this rate schedule as of its effective date, receives a greater portion of its natural gas requirements through a source other than East Ohio may be required to receive service under the Daily Transportation Service rate schedule or pay a charge based on the Standby Service rate schedule in recognition of the additional balancing services provided by East Ohio.
- 6.4 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, AMR Cost Recovery Charge, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Deleted: and

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- GA-IDR
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

Daily Transportation Service (DTS)

1. Applicability

- 1.1 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is available to Customers throughout East Ohio's service area who:
- a) have purchased or otherwise arranged for a supply of natural gas of acceptable quality and have provided for the delivery of such gas to East Ohio's system for redelivery at a point on the East Ohio system; and
 - b) qualify for transportation service under the PUCO Gas Transportation Program Guidelines; and
 - c) have entered into a written contract (the "contract") with East Ohio for service under this rate schedule for a minimum of 12 months.
- 1.2 Transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule is subject to East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service and to the Rules and Regulations contained in its tariff.

2. Character of Service

The gas received by East Ohio on any day for the account of the customer shall be delivered by East Ohio to the Customer on the same Day on a firm basis, subject to the provisions of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service. In the event of an emergency, service may be curtailed pursuant to PUCO rules or a curtailment plan approved for East Ohio by the PUCO.

3. Measurement of Deliveries

- 3.1 All Delivery Points specified in the contract shall be equipped with real-time electronic gas measurement ("EGM") capability. If EGM capability approved and required by East Ohio is not available at any of the Delivery Points specified in the contract at the time the contract is executed, such equipment shall be installed, owned, operated, and maintained by East Ohio, provided, however, that all costs associated with the purchase and installation of such equipment shall be born by the Customer and paid to East Ohio in equal monthly installments over a period specified in the contract, which period shall not exceed 24 months.
- 3.2 The Customer shall provide, at no cost to East Ohio and in a timely manner, a 120-volt, 15 ampere, AC power supply and a telephone tie to the Customer's telephone system accessible at Customer's meter location(s), and any necessary telephone enhancements to properly transmit data.

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- -GA-IDR

Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

- 3.3 The Customer shall pay all charges for continuous electric and telephone service necessary for the operation of the EGM equipment.
- 3.4 Failure by the Customer to arrange for the installation of EGM equipment or the electric and telephone service required may result in East Ohio billing usage charges based on the General Transportation Service rate schedule.

4. Balancing Tolerances

- 4.1 The Customer's Daily Available Volume on any Day shall equal the Delivery Volume on that Day, plus or minus 5%. Daily imbalances in excess of the 5% tolerance shall be subject to an imbalance fee of \$0.20 per Mcf per Day.
- 4.2 Positive and Negative Imbalance Volumes will be reconciled pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of East Ohio's General Terms and Conditions of Transportation Service.

5. Optional Volume Banking Service

- 5.1 Customers purchasing transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule may elect to subscribe to Volume Banking Service. A Customer electing such service shall enter into a written service agreement for Volume Banking Service. The minimum Monthly Tolerance Level for such Customer is two percent (2%) of monthly consumption volumes.
- 5.2 Customers that subscribe to Volume Banking Service will be billed the applicable rate per Mcf on all Delivery Volumes according to the level of Volume Banking set forth in their service agreements.

<u>Monthly Tolerance Level</u>	<u>Rate per Mcf for all Delivery Volumes</u>
Two Percent	\$0.0166
Four Percent	\$0.0214
Six Percent	\$0.0263
Eight Percent	\$0.0311
Ten Percent	\$0.0358

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
 Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: F-

Deleted: Fifth

Deleted: F-

6. Rates and Charges

- 6.1 The volumetric charge for each Customer at each Delivery Point served under this rate schedule shall not exceed the rates set forth below plus the riders as specified in 6.3 applicable to service rendered under this rate schedule:

Deleted: 4

For the first	5,000	Mcf each month,	\$1.0803	per Mcf,
for the next	45,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.6500	per Mcf,
for all over	50,000	Mcf each month,	\$0.1663	per Mcf.

In no event shall the volumetric charge for volumes delivered under this rate schedule be less than the Variable Cost of Service.

- 6.2 In addition to the volumetric charge, each Customer shall be assessed a service charge of \$377.00 per Delivery Point for each billing period or any portion thereof.
- 6.3 Customers receiving transportation service under this rate schedule shall be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Gross Receipts Tax Rider, Excise Tax Rider, Transportation Migration Rider-Part A, PIR Cost Recovery Charge, and Infrastructure Development Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales customer of East Ohio as of November 8, 1994, shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider. Any Customer initiating transportation service under this rate schedule who was exclusively a sales or Energy Choice customer in the West Ohio division as of October 16, 2008 shall continue to be responsible for charges pursuant to East Ohio's Interim Emergency and Temporary PIP Plan Rider and Uncollectible Expense Rider.

Deleted: and

Deleted: June 4, 2012

Deleted: June 5, 2012

Deleted: 12-890-GA-ATA

Deleted: Anne E. Bomar

Deleted: Senior

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
 Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- _____ -GA-IDR _____
 Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

28. **Appliances.** The customer shall install and maintain all appliances, at the customer's expense.
29. **Inspections of Altered Piping.** It shall be the duty of the customer to notify the Company promptly of any additions, changes, alterations, remodeling or reconstruction affecting gas piping on the customer's premises.
30. **Extension of Distribution Mains: Residential Customers.** East Ohio will extend its distribution mains for the furnishing of natural gas on any dedicated street or highway without cost to the residential customer whenever at least one such customer on an average of each 100 additional feet of pipe in the street or highway in which the extension is to be run shall first agree to take a supply of gas at the applicable rate, measurement to be taken from the end of the nearest distribution main that has the capacity to serve the customer(s). Upon application for a service extension of main in excess of an average of 100 feet for each applicant for such service, East Ohio may enter into an extension agreement with the applicant or applicants providing for a deposit with East Ohio of a sum deemed adequate by East Ohio to cover the cost to be incurred by it for the excess of the extension over the average of 100 feet for each applicant to be served. Each applicant shall have the option of making such payment in the form of a one-time deposit or a monthly payment to be billed to the applicant and/or subsequent customer(s) at the same premises for a period of seven years or until the cost of the mainline extension is included in East Ohio's rates and charges for service, whichever comes first. If the applicant chooses to make the payment in the form of a one-time deposit, such deposit shall be refunded within a period of 10 years from the date of the agreement at a rate per each additional residential customer thereafter connected with said extension, equivalent to the rate per 100 feet deposited, the total amount refunded not to exceed the amount deposited. No refund shall be made after 10 years from the date of the extension agreement and such deposit shall, after such period, become the property of East Ohio. Extension deposits shall bear no interest. East Ohio shall apply the preceding terms for extension of distribution mains to home builders and residential developers on the basis of anticipated residential customers, and, as a result, the deposit installment payment and refund provisions are not applicable in such instances. Extensions of street and highway mains shall at all times be the property of East Ohio. Mainline extensions that are not installed in road right of way, or adjacent thereto, will be made only if the following guidelines are met:
- A minimum 20 foot legally described easement or blanket right of way is made and granted, provided, however, that all gas mainlines with a maximum allowable operating pressure at or above 100 psi must have a minimum 30 foot easement.
 - Free and clear access to the gas mainline is maintained with no structures permitted on the easement.
- East Ohio shall not be required to lay any service lines across paved streets or highways. East Ohio shall not be required to make any extensions of its mains or to lay any service lines during the months of December, January, February and March of any year.

Issued:

Effective: With bills rendered on or after

Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-GA-ATA
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President and General Manager

Deleted: June 23, 2017

Deleted: June 23, 2017

Deleted: 108

Deleted: 8

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prohibit East Ohio from making longer free extensions than herein prescribed provided like free extensions are made to other applicants under similar conditions.

31. Extension or Upgrade of Mainlines: Economic Development Projects. In those instances where a main is being extended or upgraded in connection with an economic development project approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio under Section 4929.163 of the Ohio Revised Code, any deposit required may be funded, in whole or in part, by dollars recovered by East Ohio's Infrastructure Development Rider ("IDR"). Costs and revenues associated with IDR-related extensions or upgrades shall be treated as required by order of the Commission in Case No. 17-2515-GA-IDR and any subsequent cases.

32. Right of Removal. No person or entity shall erect any structure within a Company easement or change the existing grade over a Company gas line without the express permission of East Ohio. East Ohio shall have the right to remove any such structure or grade change at the expense of the customer or responsible party.

33. Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect in Customer's Property. If, at any time, in the opinion of East Ohio the property owner's service line, other gas lines, fittings, connections, gas appliances or equipment on a customer's premises are defective or in such condition as to constitute a hazard, East Ohio, upon notice to it of such defect or condition, may discontinue the supply of gas to such appliances or equipment or to such service line or such other gas lines until such defect or condition has been rectified by the property owner or customer in a manner satisfactory to East Ohio.

Deleted: 2

34. Excess Flow Valves. A customer may request the installation of an excess flow valve ("EFV") on an existing service line that qualifies for installation under federal pipeline safety regulations. Customers requesting installation of an EFV shall be responsible for the actual costs associated with installation, which shall be billable to the customer. East Ohio reserves the right not to install an EFV under conditions specified under federal pipeline safety regulations.

Deleted: 3

SECTION IV – MISCELLANEOUS

35. Tariff Disclosure. A full and complete copy of East Ohio's current tariff covering rates and charges for service and terms and conditions of service will be available on www.dom.com or will be provided upon request within five business days. East Ohio shall comply with the tariff disclosure requirements established by The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and set forth in Section 4901:1-1-03 of the Ohio Administrative Code, as amended from time to time.

Deleted: 4

36. PUCO Orders. These Rules and Regulations are subject to and include as part thereof all orders, rules and regulations applicable to East Ohio from time to time issued or established by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio under its emergency powers.

Deleted: 5

Deleted: June 23, 2017

Deleted: June 23, 2017

Deleted: 108

Deleted: 8

Issued: _____ Effective: With bills rendered on or after _____
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17-____GA-ATA
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President and General Manager

- Deleted: Third
- Deleted: Revised
- Deleted: Superseding Second Revised Sheet No. K10
- Deleted: 6

37. **Right to Modify.** East Ohio reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rules and regulations as experience may suggest and as East Ohio may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business.

- Deleted: June 23, 2017
- Deleted: June 23, 2017
- Deleted: 108
- Deleted: 8

Issued: Effective: With bills rendered on or after
Filed under authority of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio in Case No. 17- GA-ATA
Jeffrey A. Murphy, Vice President and General Manager

EXHIBIT C
Statement Explaining the
Reason for the Proposal

EXHIBIT C-1 & C-2

Description of New Service and Statement Explaining Reason for Proposed Changes

In accordance with R.C. 4929.161 and Ohio Admin. Code 4901:1-43-04, The East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a Dominion Energy Ohio (DEO) seeks approval to adopt a new Infrastructure Development Rider (IDR) as part of its tariff.

In addition to establishing the IDR, DEO proposes a new provision in its rules and regulations to address mainline extensions funded by the IDR. DEO is also proposing several non-substantive changes. DEO is revising several rate schedules to reflect the applicability of the IDR, to update an internal cross-reference and citations to the Ohio Administrative Code, and to eliminate tariff-code prefixes from certain headers for consistency. DEO also provides several updates to the tariff table of contents.

Establishment and Adjustment of IDR

The establishment of an IDR is authorized by recent legislation designed to incentivize additional economic development in the state of Ohio. *See* R.C. 4929.16 et seq. This application seeks to establish a placeholder IDR that will recover qualifying infrastructure development costs associated with economic development projects later approved by the Commission. *See* R.C. 4929.16 and 4929.163. Only costs associated with approved projects will be recovered through the IDR.

In accordance with R.C. 4929.162, cost recovery under the IDR shall be capped at \$1.50 per month per customer, regardless of rate class. In this application, DEO proposes establishing the IDR at an initial rate of \$0.00 per customer. As economic development projects are proposed and approved, DEO shall update the rider rate in accordance with the timelines and conditions established by the Commission.

DEO intends to account for economic development projects and to adjust the IDR in the following manner, consistent with applicable accounting principles.

Construction costs for each Commission-approved economic development project will be specifically tracked. IDR amounts billed to customers net of applicable taxes to recover such costs will be treated as a contribution in aid of construction (CIAC), *i.e.*, as a credit to plant costs for the applicable project. During the course of construction for an approved project, associated IDR amounts billed to customers will be recorded in a regulatory liability account. Upon completion of the project, accumulated IDR amounts for that project will be reclassified to offset the infrastructure development costs. If the asset is placed in service before all associated IDR amounts have been billed, CIAC will be recorded for the remainder to be collected through the rider and a regulatory asset will be established. The regulatory asset will be reduced to reflect post-in-service IDR amounts billed to customers until all associated IDR amounts have been billed.

Project costs will be trued up based on actual costs when the asset is placed in service and all costs are known, with any adjustments rolled into the next IDR calculation. Once an IDR amount for a particular project is no longer applicable, the IDR rate would be reduced accordingly.

Subsequent Connection of Additional Customers

In some instances, an IDR-funded mainline may enable DEO to provide service to a subsequent, additional customer. In such a case, DEO will credit incremental revenues to amounts being recovered through the IDR by way of a subsequent rate adjustment. Incremental revenues will comprise revenues that are in excess of the revenue needed to cover the costs of incremental depreciation expense, property tax expense, and operating and maintenance expense (if any), as well as a pre-tax return on rate base, for any capital investment required to serve such incremental load. Incremental revenues will be credited to the IDR only to the extent that the credit to the IDR equals that portion of the project costs previously recovered through the IDR.

Request for Expedited treatment

To ensure that DEO is positioned to fully and promptly support economic development projects under consideration within its service area, DEO requests that this application be approved on an expedited basis. At present, DEO is aware of several projects that may qualify for support under the IDR, and the approval of the present application will alleviate potential concerns regarding both the recoverability of project costs, as well as the timeliness of recovery.

To the extent that the IDR as proposed constitutes a “rate” or “charge” under R.C. 4909.18, the Commission has held that such an application represents a “first filing” for a new service and thus should not be treated as an application for an increase in rates. *See In re Appl. of Columbia Gas of Ohio*, Case No. 16-2067-GA-ATA, Finding & Order at 3 (May 24, 2017). As such, this application may be approved without a hearing.

This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on

12/20/2017 5:16:15 PM

in

Case No(s). 17-2514-GA-ATA, 17-2515-GA-IDR

Summary: Text In the Matter of the Application for Authority to Revise Tariffs and for Approval to Establish an Infrastructure Development Rider electronically filed by Ms. Rebekah J. Glover on behalf of The East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a Dominion Energy Ohio